
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

April 4
th

, 2012 

2:00 p.m. 

 

 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

   2-COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR APPOINTMENT 

TAB N  Appointment of County Administrator – Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

 

  3-REPORTS 

Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

 

   4-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  5-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB O  Minutes of March 14

th
, 2012 Budget Work Session – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB P  Minutes of March 17
th

, 2012 Budget Work Session – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB Q  Minutes of March 21
st
, 2012 Regular Meeting – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB R  Approval of Fire Engine for the Fork Union Fire Company – Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst  

TAB S  Resolution/National Crime Victims’ Rights Week – Sherri Stader, Director, Victim/Witness Assistance 

Program 

TAB T  FY12 Budget Supplement /PREP Grant for Schools - Edward Breslauer, Director of Finance for Fluvanna  

County Schools 

TAB U  Authorization to bid the Pleasant Grove House and Western Trailhead Grant Projects – Bobby Popowicz,  

Economic Development Director and Patricia Groot, Grants Administrator 

TAB V  Approve Retiree Health Care Plan – Kristina Hoffman, Payne & Hodous L.L.P 

 

 

    6-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB W  Melissa Marks, Senior Finance Assistant 

 

   7-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 

     

   8-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

TAB XYZ VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan for Fiscal Years 2012/13 through 2017/18 and the Secondary   

System Construction Budget for Fiscal Year 2012/13– Greg Banks, VDOT Secondary  

Programming Coordinator & David Crim, VDOT Residency Administrator 

TAB A  Public Works Update and DEQ Violation Notices – Bobby Popowicz, Acting Public Works Director 

TAB B  Return On Investment/Waterline at Zions Cross Roads – Thomas Jefferson Planning District 

 

   9-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB C  Proclamation/Proclaiming April 2012 Celebrating Children’s Month – Susan Muir, Social Services  

Director 

TAB D  Resolution/ Fair Housing Month April 2012 – Marguerite David, Deputy Director of Piedmont Housing  

Alliance 

TAB E  Shortfalls in Healthcare Fund – Linda Lenherr, Treasurer 

TAB F  Appointment/Reappointment to the Jefferson Area Board for Aging Advisory Council – Mary Weaver,  

Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

 10-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

TAB G  CIP Clarification – Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 

 

11-NEW BUSINESS 

  Proration of Personal Property Tax – Shaun Kenney, Chairman 

 

12-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 13-CLOSED MEETING 

   Discuss Legal Matters - consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring the 

provision of legal advice by such counsel 

 

14-ADJOURN 

  

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 





RESOLUTION 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FLUVANNA COUNTY 

that Steven M. Nichols be engaged as County Administrator in accordance with the terms of a 

certain contract of employment, dated March 26, 2012, a true copy of which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the said contract be, and it is hereby, APPROVED 

AND RATIFIED in accordance with its text. 

 

Clerk’s Certification 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of the resolution adopted by 

the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County on April 4, 2012, by motion made by 

_______________________________, seconded by ___________________________________ 

and carried by a vote of 5 members in favor, none opposed. 

 

      ________________________________________ 
      Mary Weaver 
      Clerk of the Board of Supervisors  

of Fluvanna County 
 



















Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, March 14th, 2012 

Page 1
 

 
 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

March 14th, 2012 
7:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
    Bob Ullenbruch, Vice Chairman  

Joe Chesser 
    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
    Brandy Amos, Human Resources Director 

Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Kenney called the special meeting of March 14th, 2012, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom of the Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia. 
  
CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 
At 7:01p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Virginia Code Section 2.2-
3711-A-1, for discussion of personnel matters, specifically discussion and 
consideration of assignment, appointment, promotion, performance, demotion and 
salaries, of specific public officers, appointees, and employees of the County.   
The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, 
Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

 
MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 9:05 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mr. 
Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 
 

MOTION: 
At 9:06 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 
of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, March 14th, 2012, on 
motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Ullenbruch, and carried by the following 
vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver, and Chesser. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: None. 
 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 



Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, March 14th, 2012 

Page 2
 

 
 

MOTION: 
Mr. Ullenbruch moved that employment with the County of the following named 
persons be terminated effective March 31, 2012; Darren Coffey, John Robins, 
Dwight Godwin, Brandy Amos, and Renee Hoover.  Each of these persons shall 
be deemed on leave from this date until March 31, 2012.  They shall return all 
county property and have no access to county facilities including communications 
equipment, vehicles, real property and the like effective March 15th, 2012.  Mr. 
Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 3-2. AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch and Weaver. NAYS: Booker and Chesser. ABSENT: None. 

 
BUDGET WORKSESSION 
Chairman Kenney reviewed with the Board what was included and what was not in the currently 
proposed budget.   
 
The Board discussed the following items: 
 Restoring the Assistant County Administrator position. 
 Adding an additional Information Technology position. 
 Radio System, Fire Rescue Generator. 
 Restoring the Treasurer’s, Commission of Revenue, and Parks and Recreation positions. 
 School Waste Water Treatment, School Buses. 
 Capital Reserve. 
 Health Insurance – 50/50 of increase. 
 Decrease Personal Property tax rate. 
 Scholarships and Microfinance with funds. 
 Debt Service. 
 Economic Development. 

 
EXTEND MEETING 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 12:00 a.m. 
Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Booker, 
Chesser, Kenney, Weaver and Ullenbruch. NAYS: None. 

 
Chairman Kenney requested a moment of silence for Mr. Doug Johnson, who recently passed away, 
and his family. 
 
RECESS 
The Board recessed at 9:56 p.m. for a 10 minute break. 
 
RECONVENED 
The Board reconvened at 10:10 p.m. 
 
The Board discussed recessing to another date to continue the budget discussion. 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, March 14th, 2012 

Page 3
 

 
 

ADJOURN 
MOTION: 

At 10:15 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to recess and reconvene on Saturday, March 
17th, 2012, at 7:00pm, in the Morris Room, of the Administrative Building. Mr. 
Weaver seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 5-0. AYES: Chesser, 
Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 

 
 

ATTEST:     FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
__________________   _______________________ 
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk   Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 





Board of Supervisors 

Budget Work Session Minutes, March 17
th

, 2012 

Page 1 

 

 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUDGET WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Morris Room 

Fluvanna Administrative Building 

March 17th 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

    Bob Ullenbruch, Vice Chairman  

Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker  

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Kenney called the session meeting of March 17th, 2012, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Morris 

Room of the Administrative Building in Palmyra, Virginia. 

 

BUDGET DISCUSSION 

Chairman Kenney showed and explained two budgets: 

 $ .75 cent budget with a $3.85 Personal Property tax rate.   

 $ .57 cent budget with a $4.15 Personal Property tax rate. 

The Board took the $ .57cent budget and reviewed line by line.  The following items were changed: 

 Registrar: removed 2nd requested part-time position ($12K est.) and add $4k in 

Personnel Contingency for part-time seasonal help 

 Fire & Rescue:  moved $150K EMS Contracting to Non-Departmental and removed 

$55K Fire Command Vehicle and $65K ALS Vehicle 

 County Planner: request for part-time to full-time was removed, decreasing personnel 

costs by $30K 

 Economic Development: decreased Workforce Development and Microfinance each 

to $85K, from $125k each. 

 Non-Profit Agency reductions 

o PVCC - $6946 to $0 

o Small Business Development Center - $2375 to $0 

o JABA - $118,750 to $100,000 

o Jaunt - $91,883 to $77,873  

o Piedmont Workforce Network - $3325 to $0 

o Offender Aid & Research - $1663 to $1000 

o Streamwatch - $1425 to $1000 

o Fluvanna Housing Foundation - $18,810 to $17,000 

 Non Departmental 

o Add $150K for EMS Contracting 

o Remove $100K BOS Professional Services 

o Remove $100K Lowest Paid Employee Salary Adjustments 

o Reduce $18K Bonuses ($70K) 

o Add $4K Personnel Contingency for Registrar part-time seasonal help 

 Level Fund the Schools 

 Level Fund Social Services 



Board of Supervisors 

Budget Work Session Minutes, March 17
th

, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 Pay Debt Service 

 CIP 

o Remove CVRJ Expansion $229,550 

o Remove PG Athletic Field Fencing $57,000 

o Remove Schools Buses $300,000 ($150K is in the Capital Reserve for buses) 

o Remove Future School Renovation of $250,000 

 

After reviewing and making adjustments the budget, the tax rate was increased from $0.57 to 

$0.655, bringing revenues over expenditures to $19,850.    

 

The Board discussed what budget to present. 

 

EXTEND MEETING  

MOTION:  

Mr. Weaver moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 12:00am. Mr. 

Ullenbruch seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 4-1. AYES: Kenney, 

Ullenbruch, Chesser and Weaver. NAYS: Booker. ABSENT:  

 

RECESS 

The Board recessed at 10:56 p.m. 

 

RECONVENE 

The Board reconvened at 11:05 p.m. 

 

The Board continued discussion on what budget to present.  Mr. Chesser and Mrs. Booker agreed to 

$0.68 budget.  Mr. Weaver wanted a $0.60 tax rate and Mr. Ullenbruch wanted a $0.625 rate.  With 

no consensus on a rate Chairman Kenney asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 12:00a.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the work session meeting of Saturday, 

March 17, 2012. Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 5-0. 

AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS: None. ABSENT:  

None. 

 

 

ATTEST:     FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

 

__________________   _______________________ 

Mary L. Weaver, Clerk   Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 





Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 1 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Historic Courthouse 
March 21st, 2012 

1:00 p.m. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
Bob Ullenbruch, Vice-Chairman  

    Mozell H. Booker 
Donald W. Weaver  

    Joe Chesser 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Camilla Washington, Chairwoman, Columbia District 
William Hughes, Vice-Chair, Cunningham District,  
Bertha Armstrong, Fork Union District 
Brenda Pace, Palmyra, District

      Carol Tracy Carr, Rivanna District 

ALSO PRESENT:  Fred Payne, County Attorney 
    Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner 
    Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE
Chairman Kenney called the special meeting of March 21st, 2012, to order at 1:00 p.m., in the 
Circuit Courtroom in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited, after which,
Chairman Kenney called for a moment of silence. 

CLOSED MEETING
MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING:

At 1:09 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 
of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing Personnel Matters –
conduct interviews.  Mr. Chesser seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-
0.  AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION:
At 4:34 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mrs. 
Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

MOTION:
At 4:35 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 
of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held on Wednesday, March 21st, 2012,
by motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mrs. Booker, and carried by the following 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 2 

vote of 5-0.   AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver, and Chesser. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: None. 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.”

RECESS
The Board recessed at 4:35 p.m. 

RECONVENED
The Board reconvened at 6:00 p.m. for Joint School Board meeting. 

Chairwoman Washington called the School Board meeting to order. 

SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET PRESENTATION
Mrs. Gena Keller, School Superintendent, presented an overview of the School Board’s FY13 budget 
that was adopted on March 14th, 2012.  Mrs. Keller shared with the Board the following topics; 

 Fluvanna County School Mission 
 Four Strategic Priorities 

o Provide a quality education to all of our students 
o Build a culture that is conducive to learning in a safe and nurturing 

environment 
o Foster relationships with our community 
o Operate in an effective and efficient manner 

 What is be accomplished 
 Primary Focus – Our Children 
 What Matters 

Mrs. Keller reviewed the items and reasons for the additional request of $1,389, 027. 

Board Discussed – Mrs. Booker asked about community participation for the orientation nights at the 
schools.  Mr. Kenney asked, if the new high school would open, if the school budget was level 
funded.  Mrs. Keller replied, “absolutely not”.  Mr. Kenney then inquired, what would be the effects 
if the school budget were cut $1million dollars?  Mrs. Keller replied a lot of things would have to 
give; approximately 20 positions would be cut.  Mr. Chesser questioned how the sustainable rate 
would affect the schools.  Mrs. Keller responded, “we planned our budget for three years”.

Chairwoman Washington adjourned the school board meeting. 

RECESS
The Board recessed at 6:47 p.m. 

RECONVENED
The Board reconvened at 7:00 p.m. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 3 

ADJOURN
MOTION:

At 7:01 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the special meeting of Wednesday, 
March 21st, 2012. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  
AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE
Chairman Kenney called the meeting of March 21st, 2012, to order at 7:02 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited, after which, 
Chairman Kenney called for a moment of silence. 

REPORTS
County Report
Chairman Kenney, reported on the following topics: 
 Land Swap between Fluvanna County and Lake Monticello Owners Association has been 

completed. 
 Publicly commended staff for stepping up and taking care of business accordingly. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 
 Mrs. Jennifer Zajac, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to taking care of the County, 

don’t think of just this year, think of five years and where we’re going
 Ms. Perrie Johnson, President of the Fluvanna Education Association – spoke in support 

of the adopted School Board budget. 
 Mike Brent – Chief of Fluvanna County Fire Department and Hazardous Material 

Coordinator for Fluvanna County, representing the four County Fire Departments – spoke 
in reference to the handling of firing five department heads.  Urged the Board to 
reconsider or at least let these people be heard, and tell their side of the story.  
Specifically, voiced support for John Robins, most important staff member in this county, 
shown by the number of responsibilities bestowed upon him by the Board.  The dismissal 
of these individuals has left a huge void in the County Emergency Plan. 

 Leonard Bozza, Cunningham District – spoke in reference to the handling of firing five 
department heads.  These actions affectively convicted these five in the press, before the 
pending investigation was concluded, and without the opportunity for the accused to be 
heard.  The individuals should have been afforded a process that would have provided a 
fair outcome based on the facts, and not some hidden agenda.  Truly embarrassed by the 
Board’s actions.  Need to develop a process that will assure, in the future, that similar 
actions will not be taken in haste. 

 Gary Osteen, Fork Union District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board budget. 
 Richard Eaton, Fork Union District – spoke in opposition to a sustainable tax rate.  
 Jennifer Flood, Rivanna District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board budget. 
 Page Smith, Fork Union District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board budget. 
 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to the Board’s “broken 

management”, as well as that of the professionals hired to run this County.  Called for a 
formal disclosure to the public of exactly what happened, how it happened, why it 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 4 

happened, and further, how it could have happened, without the Boards approval. Wants 
to draw the line at a 0.59 cent tax rate. 

 Minor Eager, Palmyra District – spoke in opposition to, a tax increase and requested the 
total number of employees, including school employees, total wages and benefits be 
posted on the website each pay period.  Request Planning Commission to develop a by-
right use that will allow any homeowner, with a house on more than two acres, to divide 
a two-acre lot, under their house, and deed it, so they can get conforming financing. 
Consider enacting an ordinance that allows property owners to pay their real estate taxes 
by deeding property to the Treasurer or to the County, itself, for tax credit at assessed 
property value. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, on behalf of the Fluvanna Taxpayers Association – spoke in regards 
to the tax rate and budget.  Opposed to a sustainable budget. 

 Ron White, Palmyra District – spoke in regards to firing of the department heads.  You 
have to be able to delegate authority to carry out your policies; and for staff to implement 
those policies and manage the resources, with integrity and openness.  Urged Board to 
stand firm and work to replace senior management with knowledgeable individuals, who 
understand that they work for all the citizens of Fluvanna County.  

 Terry Crickenberger, Columbia District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board 
budget. 

 Gloria Scharer, Cunningham District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board 
budget. 

 Jimmy Kozan, Columbia District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board budget 
and a sustainable budget. 

 Erin Small, Palmyra District – spoke in support of fully funding the school. 
 Sherri Esch, Palmyra District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board budget. 
 Bridgett Madison, Palmyra District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board 

budget. 
 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – spoke in opposition to a sustainable tax rate. 
 Robert Flood, Rivanna District – spoke in support of the adopted School Board budget. 
 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – spoke in support of a sustainable budget for Fluvanna 

County. 
 Dave Miller, Palmyra District – spoke in reference to having a first rate vision for the 

future. 
 Janice O’Malley, Palmyra District – spoke in opposition to a sustainable budget. 
 Len Gardner, Rivanna District – requested the Board take care of things now, make the 

responsible decision.   
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the first round of public comments. 

CONSENT AGENDA
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 
 Budget Work Session Minutes from February 29th, 2012.
 Minutes from March 7th, 2012.
 Resolution/Sycamore Square [secondary road addition]. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 5 

Mr. Ullenbruch seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  
Ullenbruch, Booker, Kenney, Chesser and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
None 

PUBLIC HEARING
Amend Section 2-4-1 of the Fluvanna County Code, Reduce Membership of the Fluvanna 
County Commission.  Mr. Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner addressed this request.   
Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, reviewed the history of this ordinance. 
Chairman Kenney opened the public hearing. 
With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the public hearing. 

MOTION:
Mr. Chesser moved the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance entitled “An 
Ordinance to Amend Section 2-4-1 of the Fluvanna County Code, regarding the 
membership of the Fluvanna County Planning Commission, to reduce the number 
of members on the Fluvanna County Planning Commission from six to five; to 
provide for the appointment of such members by election districts; and to provide 
for an orderly transition to such reduced membership.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  
The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, 
Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. ABSENT: None. 

PRESENTATIONS
Anthem Health Insurance – Ms. Patty Harper, Anthem Account Executive, and Ms. Karmen 
Spooner, Anthem Account Manager, presented the Local Choice Health Insurance Plan for the 
Boards review. 

ACTION MATTERS
Anthem Health Insurance Election – Ms. Kristina Hoffman, Payne & Hodous L.L.P., reviewed 
with the Board the options of terminating the Fluvanna County Administration Employee Benefit 
Plan, effective July 1, 2012, and enrolling in Anthem’s local Choice Plan for insurance coverage 
of Fluvanna County employees. 

MOTION:  
Mr. Chesser moved the Board of Supervisors terminate the Fluvanna County 
Administration Employee Benefit Plan effective July 1, 2012, and distribute the 
money in the fund, as required by applicable law, and that County Administration 
consult with the County Attorney and Payne & Hodous, L.L.P., to accomplish the 
same.  Mr. Ullenbruch seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: 
Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. ABSENT: 
None. 

MOTION:  
Mr. Chesser moved the Board of Supervisors terminate the Administrative 
Services Agreement with Gateway Health Alliance, Inc., effective July 1, 2012, 
and send a notice of termination to Gateway Health Alliance, Inc., as is required 
under the agreement;  and that County Administration consult with the County 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 6 

Attorney and Payne & Hodous, L.L.P., to accomplish the same.  Mrs. Booker 
seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, 
Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. ABSENT: None. 

MOTION:  
Mr. Chesser moved the Board of Supervisors enroll in Anthem’s The Local 
Choice Plan for insurance coverage of the employees of the County of Fluvanna, 
(and dependents, if applicable), with employees to choose between the Key 
Advantage 250, Key Advantage 500 and the High Deductible Health Care Plans, 
effective July 1, 2012;, and that County Administration consult with the County 
Attorney and Payne & Hodous, L.L.P. to accomplish the same. Mr. Ullenbruch 
seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, 
Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  None. ABSENT: None. 

FY13 Budget Discussion, Recommendation and Authorization to Advertise – Mr. Eric Dahl, 
Budget Analyst, reviewed with the Board the current proposed budget. 

MOTION:
Mr. Chesser moved the Board of Supervisors authorize staff to advertise the FY13 
Budget, the Tax Rate and the capital Improvement plan (CIP) for Public Hearing 
on April 11, 2012; the proposed budget amount for FY13 is $68,507,463.00 and 
the advertised real property tax rate is $0.68 per $100 and the advertised personal 
property rate is $4.15 per $100.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with 
a vote of 3-2.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, and Kenney. NAYS:  Weaver and 
Ullenbruch. ABSENT: None. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Mr. Fred Payne addressed with the board the handling of routine invoices and other payments 
normally handled by the County Administrator.  Mr. Payne felt it appropriate for the Board to 
authorize Mr. Kenney to approve routine payments and invoices. 
 MOTION:

Mrs. Booker moved the Board of Supervisors authorize Chairman Shaun Kenney, 
sign off on funds with money for invoices up to  $5,000 ending when the County 
Administrator comes on Board.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried with 
a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver. NAYS:  
None. ABSENT: None. 

NEW BUSINESS
Transportation Safety Commission – Mr. Chesser addressed with the Board the desire for the 
Transportation Safety Commission to be suspended.  The Board consented to suspend. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 
With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the second segment of public 
comments. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
March 21st, 2012 

Page 7 

CLOSED MEETING
MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING:

At 9:12 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting, to confer with counsel regarding legal matters and to 
discuss personnel matters, in accordance with Code of Virginia, Section 2.2-3711-
A(7) and 2.2-3711-A(1) respectively.  Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, 
with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. 
NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION:
At 9:41 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mrs. 
Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

MOTION:
At 9:42 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 
of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, March 21st, 2012, on
motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Chesser, and carried by the following 
vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver, and Chesser. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT: None. 

“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 
was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.”

ADJOURN
MOTION:

At 9:42 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, March 
21st, 2012. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: 
Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  
None. 

ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

__________________              
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman



8



 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SEC. 2-4-1 OF THE FLUVANNA COUNTY 
CODE REGARDING THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE FLUVANNA COUNTY 

PLANNING COMMISSION TO REDUCE THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS ON 
THE FLUVANNA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION FROM SIX TO FIVE; 

TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF SUCH MEMBERS BY 
ELECTION DISTRICTS; AND TO PROVIDE FOR AN ORDERLY 

TRANSITION TO SUCH REDUCED MEMBERSHIP  
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  that the 
County Code be, and it is hereby, amended, in Chapter 2, Section 2-4-1, as follows: 
 
Sec.  2-4-1.  Generally. 
 

The county planning commission shall consist of six five members, appointed by the 
board of supervisors, all of whom shall be residents of the county and of the election district from 
which they are appointed, qualified by knowledge and experience to make decisions on questions 
of community growth and development; provided, that at least one-half of the members so 
appointed shall be owners of real property.  One member shall be appointed from each of the 
county’s election districts, other than the Rivanna District, and two members shall be appointed 
from the Rivanna District.  In addition, there shall be one member of the commission appointed 
by the board of supervisors from among its members, whose term as such member of the 
commission shall be coterminous with the term of such member as a member of the board of 
supervisors or such lesser term as the board of supervisors shall determine, who shall serve as 
liaison and who shall not be entitled to vote on matters before the commission.  The remaining 
members of the commission first appointed shall serve respectively for terms of one year, two 
years, three years, and four years, divided equally or as nearly equal as possible between the 
membership.  Subsequent appointments shall be for terms of four years each.  Removal of 
residence from the district from which a member is appointed shall automatically vacate the 
office of such member.  Vacancies shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term only.  
Members may be removed for malfeasance in office.  Each member of the commission shall 
receive compensation for his services as shall be established by resolution of the board of 
supervisors from time to time. (9-4-96; Ord. 1-15-97) 

 
The foregoing notwithstanding, for so long as the terms of any of the members of the 

commission shall be unexpired as of  the date of adoption of this amendment, such current 
members shall continue in office in all respects as members in good standing until  their 
respective unexpired terms expire or otherwise terminate.  As soon as may be after the adoption 
of this amendment, the board of supervisors shall ratify the designation of  the current district 
members of the commission, and all current members not so designated shall be deemed to be 
members for the county at large.  No member at large shall be reappointed as such; provided that 
any at large member whose term expires or otherwise terminates may be reappointed as a district 
member. (Ord 11-17-04) 
 

9



















RESOLUTION 
National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on Wednesday, April 4, 
2012, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following resolution was adopted on a motion by ____________, seconded by 
____________, and voted in the affirmative: 
  
 WHEREAS, over 18 million Americans are victims of crime each year, suffering physical and emotional 
injury, as well as financial loss, and each victim’s pain touches family, friends, coworkers and the community; 
 
 WHEREAS, 30 years have passed since the President’s Task Force on Victims of Crime sought to afford 
a fair, compassionate approach to crime victims - informing victims of their rights, treating them with 
compassion, and providing emotional and financial support to those in need; 
  
 WHEREAS, while brave victims and dedicated victim advocates across the country are increasing 
awareness and reaching more victims, public understanding of victims’ rights remains minimal, and our 
nation’s victim services system remains fragmented and underfunded; 
 
 WHEREAS, these 30 years have taught us that by working together, we can help meet the needs of 
victims of crime with respect and dignity and to support them as they seek to overcome their challenges and 
regain control over their lives; 
 
 WHEREAS, thousands of victim assistance programs now provide help and support to child victims of 
violence and sexual abuse; stalking victims; survivors of homicide victims; victims of drunk-driving crashes; 
victims of burglaries and larcenies, and victims of domestic, dating, and sexual violence, as well as other 
crimes; 

 
 WHEREAS, National Crime Victims’ Rights Week, April 22-28, provides an opportunity for us to 
reaffirm our commitment to victims by honoring the improvements that have been made, while working to 
extend the vision and to reach every victim; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna Victim/Witness Assistance Program is joining forces with victim service 
programs, criminal justice officials, and concerned citizens throughout Fluvanna County and the 
Commonwealth of Virginia to raise awareness of victims’ rights and observe National Crime Victims’ Rights 
Week; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors does hereby 
proclaim the week of April 22-28, 2012 as Crime Victims’ Rights Week and reaffirms our commitment to 
respect and enforce victims’ rights and address their needs during National Crime Victims’ Rights Week and 
throughout the year. 
 
  
 
________________________________   ______________________ 
Chairman       Date    
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 





   

MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors authorize staff to advertise for construction bids for the renovation of the 
Pleasant Grove house and the Heritage Trail Western Trailhead parking area and comfort station, contingent upon 
approval of plans by VDOT.  
 
 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  April 4, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval to combine bid packages advertise for construction 
 
TIMING: Immediate  
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  The projects are funded by VDOT Transportation Enhancement (TE) funds, County cash 
match that is already appropriated ($150,000 PG house; $25,000 WTH), foundation grants, and donations from the 
Heritage Trail Foundation and the Historical Society. Each project is funded by a separate VDOT TE grant. This 
action seeks to combine the projects into one bid package, combining mobilization costs and eliminating duplicated 
costs, saving an estimated $50,000. The bid package is structured to have a base bid and add alternates. This 
method is used since negotiation of price is not permitted under TE federal rules. The cost of the base bid plus the 
cost of alternates will determine the full scope of the project. The base bid will renovate the exterior of the PG 
House, construct the addition, and finish the interior of the ground and middle floor. If bids are within budget, the 
add-alternates will fund geothermal heating and air conditioning, the interior of the top floor office space and the 
interior of the warming kitchen. Estimated project cost is $880,000 without geothermal. The base bid for the 
Western Trailhead will construct the parking area and the comfort station. Solar water heating and radiant floor 
heating are being explored as an add-alternate but may exceed the construction budget. Estimated project cost is 
$187,000, without the solar water costs. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: Completion of the Pleasant Grove adaptive reuse project, the parking area, and the 
comfort station 
 
DISCUSSION:  The Board of Supervisors has authorized construction bids for the Pleasant Grove House and 
approved the plans for the Western Trailhead parking area and comfort station. The Pleasant Grove House will be 
renovated to provide a visitors center, permanent museum display of the Rivanna Navigation system, and provide 
office space for Pleasant Grove staff on the top floor. A new, two story architecturally compatible addition to the rear 
of the house will also be built. It will contain an office used by volunteers staffing the visitor center, an elevator, 
handicap accessible bathrooms, and a warming kitchen. The parking area and the comfort station are funded under 
a TE grant as amenities to the Western Trailhead of the Heritage Trail – the renovated summer kitchen of the PG 
House functions as the Western Trailhead.  
 
The archeological investigations; Phase 1 and Phase 2 investigation of the addition site, walkways, front parking, 
rear parking, and comfort station site have been complete with conditional no adverse impact determinations issued 
for both project. The boundaries of the historic 5 acres surrounding the house have now been defined with GPS 
coordinates and will be marked with permanent markers once FHWA releases the projects for advertisement. 
These projects had been ready to advertise, however citizens brought forward new information about the sites that 
ultimately required additional archeological investigations which are now completed.  We will be combining the 
projects together, under one bid, keeping the separate VDOT coding numbers.  This will mean there will remain two 
separate drawing packages, two separate estimates that will combine mobilization and any duplication of work.  
There will be one set of specifications, with two separate Davis Bacon wage rates -- heavy highway and building. 
VDOT is awaiting approval form Federal Highway Administration for authorization to bid. 
  

1





1/3/2008; revised 6/8/2011

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA
PLEASANT GROVE MANOR HOUSE REHABILITATION PROJECT

PROJECT GOAL: Preservation of the Pleasant Grove House, a 
historic property listed on the Virginia Landmarks Register and the 
National Register of Historic Places - Funds awarded will support the 
adaptive reuse and rehabilitation of the Pleasant Grove House (c. 
1854), establishing a Fluvanna County Visitors Center with 
permanent exhibits interpreting the relationship between the Pleasant 
Grove plantation and the Rivanna River Canal Navigation system  - 
the most preserved network of boat/bateaux locks and canals in the 
Commonwealth, as well as rotating exhibits that will showcase topics 
of interest to tourists and locals.

HOUSE PROJECT BUDGET - $735,750 RAISED
Funds will be used for architectural and consultant fees to develop bid packages and construction documents; conduct environmental 
studies including Department of Historic Resources evaluation and probable archaeological investigation of the new wing site; Department 
of Conservation and Recreation for protected species; bid advertisement; municipal source water testing; site preparation, construction, 
interior finishing of exhibits and visitor center construction. Full funding of pending Transportation Enhancement award enables 
rehabilitation of the manor house and construction of the new addition. Other funds raised will complete the grounds.

Source of Funds Description of Funds Available Amount
Fluvanna County General Fund appropriation FY 07 $ 150,000
Beirne Carter Foundation (HS) Grant awarded FY 07 $ 20,000
Transportation Enhancement/VDOT Grant awarded FY 08 $ 150,000
Charlottesville Area Foundation Grant awarded 3/07 $ 10,000
Department of Historic Resources Grant Awarded 7/07 $ 23,750
Perry Foundation (HS) Grant Awarded FY 08 $ 50,000
Dominion Foundation (HS) Grant Awarded FY 09 $ 50,000
Transportation Enhancement/VDOT Grant Awarded FY 08-09 $ 300,000

PROJECT: The County is actively working to implement the plan for adaptive reuse and rehabilitation of the Pleasant Grove Manor House
(c. 1854), a two-story with English basement house attached by a breezeway to a summer kitchen. Situated along the Rivanna River on a 
970 acre property owned by the County, Pleasant Grove is an excellent example of mid 19th century plantations whose principal crops 
were tobacco and grains. In 2004 the Pleasant Grove house and surrounding five acres was officially entered into the Virginia Landmarks 
Register and the National Register of Historic Places. In support of the Pleasant Grove Manor House rehabilitation project, which will 
be completed in accordance with US Department of Interior guidelines for rehabilitation of historic structures, funds will be used to: 

1) Rehabilitate the exterior of the house, enhancing the view for travelers from the road; 
2) Rehabilitate portions of the interior for the Fluvanna County Visitors Center; and 
3) Construct a new two-story addition.

Exterior improvements will enhance the scenic view from Route 53. Interior improvements to the ground 
and first floors establish a Visitors Center including two exhibit areas, and a presentation room. Plans 
include rehabilitation of the existing structure and construction of a 1,500 square foot architecturally 
compatible extension to the rear of the house. Adaptive reuse of the building will require upgraded 
HVAC, accessibility by elevator to all floors from the new rear wing, and new accessible public 
restrooms. The Visitors Center will:

1) Showcase 1840’s farm life and the historic Rivanna 
River Canal Navigation system which served as 
the primary mode of transportation in the late 18th

and early 19th centuries; 
2) Support and interpret the Fluvanna Virginia Scenic 

Byways within our borders and beyond; 
3) Direct visitors to attractions in Fluvanna and 

nearby towns, cities and counties. 

3



4



5



 

6



6
7
8

Sheet of

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AT SITE AND SHALL

NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES BEFORE PROCEEDING

Revisions

Date# By
1

Job #

Drawn

Date

Checked

2
3
4
5

A
pp

ro
ve

d:

206 5th Street N.E.
P.O. Box 2555

Charlottesville Virginia, 22902
tel: 434·977·4480
fax: 434·296·8720

info@dgparchitects.com

2

PL
EA

SA
N

T
G

R
O

VE
C

O
M

FO
R

T
ST

AT
IO

N
FL

U
VA

N
N

A
C

O
U

N
TY

PL
AN

S
&

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S

A-1
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

4194 2/22/2010

EWAAMG/EWA

SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''
1

FOUNDATION PLAN
SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''

2
FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''
3

ROOF PLAN

SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''
4

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''

5
SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''
6

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4'' =  1' - 0''
7

PRIVACY SCREEN

GFCI

GFCI
G

F
C

I

S

20'-0" 4'-8"

5'
-6

"
9'

-0
"

5'
-6

"

20
'-0

"

4'-6"

4'
-6

"
4'

-6
"

3 
1/

2"
5'

-0
"

5'
-6

"
9'

-0
"

5'
-6

"

5'-7" 1" 2'-8" 1" 2'-8" 1" 2'-8" 1" 5'-0"

1'-4" 1'-4"1'-4" 1'-4"1'-4" 1'-4"4'-1" 1'-6" 1'-6" 3'-6"

5'
-2

"
1"

5'
-0

"

10
'-1

0"
7 

1/
4"

8'
-6

 3
/4

"

20'-0" 4'-8"

5'
-6

"
9'

-0
"

5'
-6

"

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

8'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

8'
-0

"

4'-0" +/- 12'-0" +/- 4'-0" +/-

20'-0"

3 1/2" 2'-8" +/- 3 1/2" 2'-8" +/- 3 1/2" 2'-8" +/- 3 1/2"

3 1/2" 7'-3" 3 1/2"

7'-10"

6'
-1

0"

1'
-0

"
5'

-8
"

2"

7'-10"

TOP OF SLAB = 0" TOP OF SLAB = 0"TOP OF SLAB = 0"

1
A-2

2 / A-2

2 / A-2

5
A-1

4
A-1

6
A-1

TRIM ROOF MONITOR W/ 3 1/2"

CASING AS SHOWN.  OVERALL
FRAMING DIMENSION MAY VARY
SLIGHTLY PENDING FINAL WINDOW

WIDTHS.

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

DOWNSPOUT AND GUTTER

2X4 FLAT FRAMING

ON END WALLS

2X4 STANDARD FRAMING
ON SIDE WALLS

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

MONITOR

FASCIA BOARD

CASING

MONITOR WINDOWS
TYPICAL OF 8

SKIRT BOARD

GUTTER & DOWNSPOUT

FASCIA BOARD

RAKE BOARD

CORNER BOARD

SIDING

GUTTER &

DOWNSPOUT

CASING

ENTRY DOOR
TYPICAL OF 2

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

MONITOR

RAKE BOARD

SIDING

CORNER BOARD

SKIRT BOARD

GABLE LOUVER

TYPICAL OF 2

RAKE BOARD

CORNER
BOARD

SIDING

GUTTER &
DOWNSPOUT

UTILITY
DOOR

CASING

FASCIA BOARD

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF

FIXTURE C
TYPICAL 2 EACH
ENTRY & UTILITY

DOOR

LOUVER.
TYPICAL OF 2.

ALIGN HEAD HEIGHT
WITH ENTRY DOORS.

FIXTURE C

TYPICAL OF 6

FIXTURE A
TYPICAL OF 4

FIXTURE B
TYPICAL OF 1

MONITOR LOUVER
TYPICAL OF 2

4X4

2X4 BOTTOM RAIL

1X6 STAGGERED

1X STOP EACH SIDE

2X4 TOP RAIL

MONITOR FASCIA BOARD

91/2

12

91/2

12

5

12

WATER

HEATER

ELEC

PANEL

C
A

B
IN

E
T

H
E

A
T

E
R

C
A

B
IN

E
T

H
E

A
T

E
R

NOTE:
DIMENSIONS FOR TOILET PARTITIONS &

PLUMBING FIXTURES ARE CLEAR

DIMENSIONS TAKEN TO FACE OF FINISH.

ALL OTHER DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE

OF CMU, EXTERIOR FACE OF SHEATHING, &

INTERIOR FACE OF WOOD FRAMING.

PRIVACY
SCREEN

DHR 2008 1018

24 GAUGE METAL

24 GAUGE METAL

24 GAUGE METAL

7



 

 

MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors enroll in Anthem’s The Local Choice Plan for 
insurance coverage of the retirees of the County of Fluvanna, and dependents if applicable, with 
retirees, not on Medicare, to choose between the Key Advantage 250, Key Advantage 500 and 
the High Deductible Health Care Plans and retirees on Medicare to be able to enroll in the 
Advantage 65 and Dental/Vision plan effective July 1, 2012 and that County Administration 
consult with the County Attorney and Payne & Hodous, L.L.P. to  accomplish the same and 
terminate insurance through the self-funded plan administered by Gateway effective July 1, 
2012. 
 
AGENDA         BOARD OF SUPERVISORS             DATE:  APRIL 4

th
, 2012 

 

SUBJECT: Approve Retirees Health Care Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends terminating the Fluvanna County 
Administration Employee Benefit Plan effective July 1, 2012 and enrolling in Anthem’s The 
Local Choice Plan for insurance coverage of the retirees of the County of Fluvanna, and 
dependents if applicable, with retirees, not on Medicare, to choose between the Key Advantage 
250, Key Advantage 500 and the High Deductible Health Care Plans effective July 1, 2012 and 
retirees on Medicare to be able to enroll in the Advantage 65 and Dental/Vision plan effective 
July 1, 2012.  Staff recommends terminating the Administrative Services Agreement with 
Gateway Health Alliance, Inc. effective July 1, 2012; however with Gateway Health Alliance, 
Inc. continuing to administer the run out of claims for as long as is necessary, but at minimum 90 
days. 
 
TIMING: Requires Immediate Attention 

 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  The Board will need to budget funds adequate to cover the 
minimum contribution requirements for The Local Choice pursuant to the Proposal provided to 
the Board.  The Board will need to budget funds to pay the employer contributions to The Local 
Choice Plan.   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  Board action is required to enroll in The Local Choice Plan 
offered by Anthem for retirees.   
 
DISCUSSION:   
 
COST OF PLANS (See Section 4 of Proposal for a Detailed Analysis) 

 
Plan             COST Per Employee 

Retirees Not Eligible for Medicare          Single    Dual (+spouse or +child)      Family 
1. Key Advantage Expanded (KA+) -             672                            1,243                1,814 
2. Key Advantage 250                                   621                              1,149                1,677 
3. Key Advantage 500                                   570                              1,055                 1,539 
4. Key Advantage 1000                                 534                              988                  1,442 
5. High Deductible Health Care Plan            477                              822                    1,288 

Retirees Eligible for Medicare          Single    
6. Advantage 65                                            160 
7. Advantage 65 and Dental/Vision              190 
 





























































































































































































































F L U V A N N A  B O A R D  O F  S U P E R V I S O R S  

W E D N E S D A Y  A P R I L  4 ,  2 0 1 2  

Return on Investment  
Model 



Summary 

 Purpose 

 Methods 

 Market Study 

 Growth Scenarios 

 Study Area 

 Revenue Breakdown 

 Cost Breakdown 

 Results 

 Existing Net Revenue 

 Cumulative Net Revenues over 5 to 10 years 

 



Purpose 

 Provide unbiased information to decision-makers 

 

 The ROI model is: 

 Inclusive with all costs/revenues associated with water/sewer 
and anticipated growth 

 Transparent with its assumptions and methodology 

  Easily Modified – changes in assumptions provide instant 
results 

 Focused on a 10-Year Planning Horizon 



Market Study 

Study Areas around I-64 interchanges 

I-64 Market Area 



Market Study 

 
 Compared growth that occurred at interchanges over the 

past 10 years 
 

 Ignored development with low probability of occurring in 
the future – such as the Wal-Mart Distribution Center 
 

 Considered residential and non-residential growth 
 

 Functioned as basis for growth scenarios 
 Slow growth 
 Moderate Growth 
 Expected Growth 
 Optimal Growth 



10 Year Slow Growth Scenario 

Category 10 Year 
Growth 
Assumptions 

 
Example: 

Residential 63 Homes 26 students, including 169 new residents = 
.6% increase in the Countywide population 

Office 45,000 ft2   180 office employees 

Retail/Service 153,000 ft2  1 small convenience center – grocery  store with 
retail anchor and several small retail stores. 

Restaurants 9,000 ft2  3 fast food establishments or combination of 1 fast 
food and 1 dine-in restaurant  

Industrial 54,000 ft2 
 

2 to 3 medium-sized warehouses 
 
Medium-sized warehouse = the Blue Ridge 
Mountain Sports building off Route 15 



Category 10 Year 
Growth 
Assumptions 

 
Example: 

Residential 90 Homes 37 students, including 241 new residents = 
1% increase in the Countywide population 

Office 94,500 ft2   378 office employees 

Retail/Service 220,500 ft2  1 big-box store surrounded by several smaller 
retailers (outparcels) = 
Commercial center 1/2 the size of the “Shoppes at 
Spring Creek” 

Restaurants 9,000 ft2  3 fast food establishments or combination of 1 fast 
food and 1 dine-in restaurant  

Industrial 54,000 ft2 
 

2 to 3 medium-sized warehouses 
 
Medium-sized warehouse = the Blue Ridge 
Mountain Sports building off Route 15 

10 Year Moderate Growth Scenario 



Category 10 Year 
Growth 
Assumptions 

 
Example: 

Residential 126 Homes 52 students, including 337 new residents = 
1.3% increase in the Countywide population 

Office 135,000 ft2   540 office employees 

Retail/Service 292,500 ft2  2 retail anchors, a grocer and several small retail 
outparcels = 
Commercial center 3/4 the size of the “Shoppes at 
Spring Creek” 

Restaurants 22,500 ft2  3 dine-in restaurants and a fast-food establishment  

Industrial 63,000 ft2 
 

2 to 3 medium-sized warehouses or 1 large 
warehouse 
 
Medium-sized warehouse = the Blue Ridge 
Mountain Sports building off Route 15 
Large warehouse = Mac Steel Building 

10 Year Expected Growth Scenario 



10 Year Optimal Growth Scenario 

 Over the 10-Year Planning Horizon, this Equates to: 

 Optimal Growth 

 409,500 ft2  of Retail = A regional shopping center – multiple 
anchors and several smaller retailers 

 18,000 ft2 of Restaurants = 3 dine-in restaurants or combination 
of 2 dine-in and 2 fast food establishments  

 

 

Category 10 Year 
Growth 
Assumptions 

 
Example: 

Residential 180 Homes 74 students, including 482 new residents = 
1.9% increase in the Countywide population 

Office 180,000 ft2   720 office employees 

Retail/Service 409,500 ft2  1 regional shopping center – 2 big-box stores with 
several small retail stores = 
Commercial center the size of the “Shoppes at 
Spring Creek” 

Restaurants 27,000 ft2  4 dine-in restaurants and a fast-food establishment  

Industrial 63,000 ft2 
 

2 to 3 medium-sized warehouses or 1 large 
warehouse 
 
Medium-sized warehouse = the Blue Ridge 
Mountain Sports building off Route 15 
Large warehouse = Mac Steel Building 



Study Area 



Basic Considerations 

Revenues Costs 

Existing Development  Existing Services 

Future Development Future Services 

Waterline Revenue Waterline Capital/Maintenance 

Sewer-Line Revenue Sewer-Line Capital/Maintenance 

Total Revenue Total Costs 

Total Revenue - Total Costs = Net Revenue 



Revenue Assumptions 

 Tax Rate Assumptions 

 Real Estate (per $100 assessed value) - $.57 

 

 Personal Property (per $100 assessed value) - $4.15 

 

 County share of sales (on the dollar) - 1% 

 

 Space-holders for other revenue sources: 

 Meals Tax 

 Machinery and Tool Tax 



Revenue Assumptions 

 Sewer System Revenue 

 Connection Fees - $4,500 

 Sewer Rate (per 1,000 gallons) - $10 

 

 Water System Assumptions 

 Connection Fee - $3,750 

 Water Rate (per 1,000 gallons) - $8 

 Availability Fee - $500,000/year for first 6 years 



Cost Assumptions 

 Sewer Line Costs 

 Baseline Cost – $94,900 

 Maintenance (per 1,000 gallons) – $.10 

 Charge from DOC (per 1,000 gallons) – $2 

 

 Waterline Costs 
 Meter Box Maintenance (per connection)-  

 $250   

 Water (first 127,000 gallons/year) –  

 $950,000 

 Water over 127,000 gallons (per 1,000 gallons) - 
$2.95 



Cost Assumptions 

 Service Costs 

 Schools (Local Costs per Student) 
- $4,302 

 

 New High School Debt Services 
(per Developed Acre) - $96.6 

 

 County Administrative Costs  
(per Developed Acre) - $176 

 



Results 

 
Scenarios 

Year 5: Cumulative Figures Year 10: Cumulative Figures 

Gross Revenue Gross Cost Net Revenue Gross 
Revenue 

Gross Cost Net Revenue 

Without Waterline $7,051,335 -$9,967,626 -$2,916,290 $14,543,926 -$20,132,483 -$5,588,557 

Waterline: Slow Growth $16,139,607 -$16,346,267 -$206,660 $35,519,214 -$34,167,189 $1,352,025 

Waterline: Moderate Growth $17,011,778 -$16,461,695 $550,082 $39,389,791 -$34,763,989 $4,625,802 

Waterline: Expected Growth $18,448,967 -$16,695,620 $1,753,346 $44,614,432 -$35,678,978 $8,935,454 

Waterline: Optimal Growth $20,179,512 -$16,974,296 $3,205,216 $51,595,036 -$36,890,570 $14,704,467 

Annual Gross Revenue Gross Cost Net Revenue 

Existing (Snapshot) $1,573,973 -$1,977,747 -$403,774 

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 

$.57 Tax Rate 



Results 

$.57 Tax Rate 



Summary 

 Currently, Fluvanna County looses $403,774 per year in the 
Zion Crossroads area 

 (Cost of Services > Revenue Collected) 

 

 

 

 
Scenarios 

Net Revenue 
($.57 tax rate) 

No Waterline -$5,588,557 

Slow Growth $1,352,025 

Moderate Growth $4,625,802 

Expected Growth $8,935,454 

Optimal Growth $14,704,467 

10 Year Cumulative Figures 



Questions 

Thomas Jefferson Planning District 
Commission 

Phone: (434) 979-7310 

Email: swilliams@tjpdc.org 

Contact: 
Stephen Williams, Executive Director 









 

  
 

President 

J. Lloyd Snook, III 
Vice President 

Darla Overton Rose 
Secretary 

David M. Oakland 
Treasurer 
Gordon J. Walker 
Charlottesville 

John J. Gaines 
Satyendra Singh Huja 
Mark Stanis 
James Hollins 
Caroline Wilkinson 
Joy Pugh 
Oliver Platts-Mills 
Albemarle County 

Helen D. Flamini 
Karen V. Lilleleht 
Deb Anama 
Graham Paige 
William D. Tucker, III 
Greene County 

Ginny Barefoot 
Louisa County 

Grace Cooke 
Nelson County 

Ron H. Enders 
Beth Golden 
Charlottesville Housing  

Foundation 

Francis H. Fife 
 
Thomas Jefferson 

Community Workforce 

Housing Fund  

Advisors 

Carol F. Clarke 
Francis H. Fife 
Jeff Gaffney 
Mark Giles 
Cheri A. Lewis 
Leigh B. Middleditch, Jr. 
David J. Toscano 
Gordon J. Walker 
 

 
 
 

1215 East Market St., Suite B  •  Charlottesville, VA 22902  •  (434)817-CHDO (2436)  •  Fax (434)817-0664 
Visit our website: www.piedmonthousingalliance.org 

Memorandum 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

From: Karen Reifenberger, Deputy Director, Piedmont Housing Alliance 

 Howard Evergreen, Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation 

Date: 3/14/2012 

Re: Fair Housing Month Resolution 

April 2012 marks the 44th anniversary of the federal Fair Housing Act.  In recognition 
of Fair Housing Month, we present the attached resolution for consideration at the 
April meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors.  Adopting and 
promoting a resolution endorsing the concept of fair housing is one step recipients of 
federal funds can take to affirmatively further fair housing. 
 
Throughout the year, Piedmont Housing Alliance’s Regional Fair Housing Program 
promotes equal housing opportunity and combats housing discrimination. As the 
regional provider of fair housing education, outreach, and advocacy services, our goal 
is to raise awareness and promote compliance with federal and state fair housing laws 
that protect our community from discrimination based on race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, family status, disability, and elderliness in the rental, sale and financing 
of housing.  
 
PHA’s fair housing services include advocating for victims of housing discrimination, 
responding to fair housing compliance questions, conducting fair housing education 
sessions, creating comprehensive educational materials and public awareness 
campaigns, and chairing the Regional Fair Housing Advisory Meetings.  In 2011, 
PHA conducted 11 education sessions for approximately 171 people and responded to 
68 calls for assistance.  
 
Thank you for your continued support of fair housing and equal housing opportunity.  
For more information about this resolution or PHA’s fair housing services, please 
contact Karen Reifenberger at 434-817-2436 ext. 106 or 
karenr@piedmonthousing.org. 
 
 
 



Fair Housing Month 2012 Resolution 
 
 
WHEREAS, April is Fair Housing Month and marks the 44th anniversary of the passage 
of the federal Fair Housing Act (Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended 
by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988); 
 
WHEREAS, the Fair Housing Act provides that no person shall be subjected to 
discrimination because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or familial 
status in the rental, sale, financing or advertising of housing (and the Virginia Fair 
Housing Law also prohibits housing discrimination based on elderliness); 
 
WHEREAS, the Fair Housing Act supports equal housing opportunity throughout the 
United States; 
 
WHEREAS, Fair Housing creates healthy communities, and housing discrimination 
harms us all; 
 
WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors supports equal housing 
opportunity and seeks to affirmatively further fair housing not only during Fair Housing 
Month in April, but throughout the year; 
 
Signed and sealed this ____ day of April, 2012. 
 
 
 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors, Chairman 



 
 

MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors approve that Shaun Kenney, as Chairman of the 

Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, be authorized to approve any transfers from the 

General Fund to the Health Insurance Fund necessary to keep a balance of no less than 

$25,000.00 in such Health Insurance Fund. 

 

 

AGENDA         BOARD OF SUPERVISORS             DATE:  April 4
th

, 2012 

 

SUBJECT: Shortfalls in the Health Care Fund 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends authorizing Shaun Kenney, as the Chairman of 

the Board of Fluvanna County, be authorized to approve any transfers from the General Fund to 

the Health Insurance Fund necessary to keep a balance of no less than $25,000.00 in such Health 

Insurance Fund. 

 

TIMING: Requires Immediate Attention 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  All claims and administrative fees for health care under the self 

funded health care plan administered by Gateway Health Alliance, Inc. must be paid out of the 

Health Care Fund and if the contributions to such fund are not sufficient to cover such claims 

and administrative fees, then the County of Fluvanna must allocate the general funds of the 

County of Fluvanna, or other monies of the County of Fluvanna, to the Health Care Fund 

pursuant to the plan document to cover such claims and administrative fees.   

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  Board action is required to authorize Chairman Kenney to 

approve such payments from the General Fund to the Health Care Fund. 

 

DISCUSSION:  The Fluvanna County Health Insurance Account is running low on funds.  As 

of March 27
th

, 2012, the balance in the account was $101,104.75 and the claims due on Friday, 

March 30
th

, 2012 were $126,684.09, a shortage $25,579.34.  The administrative fees due April 

10
th

, 2012 will be an additional $12,485.88.   

 

At the Board meeting on August 3
rd

, 2011 the Board approved a transfer of $75,000.00, budgeted 

in non-departmental for FY 2012 Health Insurance rate increase to the Health Insurance Fund, 

however $71,712.00 of that money was never actually transferred to the health insurance fund.  

Thus last week the $71,712.00 was transferred to health insurance fund and thus all claims were 

paid Friday, March 30
th

, 2012.  This did not require any direct board action as the transfer was 

already approved, but never completed.   

 

However, there will be additional claims payable Friday, April 13
th

, 2012; and there is no way to 

estimate what these will be.  There must be a balance in this account.  

 

Shortages in the Health Care Fund may be a problem until The Local Choice Plan becomes 

effective in July 2012.  Unfortunately, the amount of claims to be paid is not provided to the 

County until just days before the payment for the claims is due.  Therefore, any shortfalls would 

only come to the attention of the County just prior to the same being due and payable.  Thus, I 

recommend approving any necessary transfers from the General Fund to the health care to cover 

shortfalls and to make sure that the health care fund has a balance of no less than $25,000.00 

fund as authorized by the Chairman.   













  
 
 
  
 
 

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 • (434) 591-1930 • FAX (434) 591-1911 • www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

TO: Board of Supervisors 
FROM:  Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
CC: Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
DATE:  March 26, 2012  
RE:  2013-2017 CIP, BOS Meeting 4/4/12 – Unfinished Business 

 
******************************************************************************************* 

From the Board of Supervisors Budget Work Session on 3/17/12, 2013 CIP items were removed from the FY13 
Budget. From those changes, clarification is needed on what later fiscal year in the 2013-2017 Capital 
Improvement Plan the Board of Supervisors would like to move those capital improvements to or remove them 
entirely. The items that were removed are the following: 

 PG Amphitheater $71,072 
 PG Athletic Field Fencing $57,000 
 Animal Shelter $35,000 (Planning & Engineering), the remaining $320,000 is in FY14 
 Convenience Center Improvements $53,000 
 Historic Courthouse $30,000 
 Facilities/Maintenance Vehicle Replacement $25,000 
 Ambulance - Replacement $150,000  
 Patrol Vehicle & Equip Replacement $251,500  
 CVRJ Expansion $229,550  
 Middle to Upper Elementary Renovations $685,067 
 4 Bus Replacements $300,000  

Please see the attached 2013-2017 Capital Improvement Plan highlighting the changes. 

 

 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

Eric Dahl 
Budget Analyst 

edahl@co.fluvanna.va.us 



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2013 - 2017

3/26/2012

* Denotes a new project, all others were part of the FY12-16 CIP

Current Year 

Requested

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017

FY2013-17 

Total

Project Cost Borrowing Cash Local Other Grant

Local

Donations Cash Proffer

FY2013-17

Total 

Project 

Funding

FY2018

and

Beyond

-                             -                       
Governmental

*County Schools Capital Reserve (CASH) FY11 Depreciation $848,740 X 20% 169,748                        169,748                 169,748          169,748            
*County Schools Capital Reserve for School Bus Replacement 150,000                        150,000                 150,000          150,000            
*County Capital Reserve (CASH) FY11 Depreciation $780,130 x 20% 156,026                        156,026                 156,026          156,026            
*County Capital Reserve for Sheriff's Vehicle Replacement 125,000                        125,000                 125,000          125,000            

Community Services
Parks & Recreation

 PG Amphitheater 71,072                          71,072                   56,072            15,000            71,072              
*PG Athletic Field Fencing 57,000                          57,000                   57,000            57,000              
PG Restroom 33,000            33,000                   33,000            33,000              
PG Playground Expansion 49,500            49,500                   39,500            10,000            49,500              
PG Farm Museum 100,000          100,000                 50,000            50,000            100,000            
*PG Multi-Purpose Structure 75,000            75,000                   75,000            75,000              
*Crofton Trail Park Development 224,000          224,000                 44,800            179,200          224,000            
PG Athletic Field Lighting 321,000          321,000                 321,000          321,000            
PG Outdoor Pool 640,000          640,000                 320,000          320,000          640,000            
PG Outdoor Pool Building 243,100          243,100                 243,100          243,100            
*PG Spray Ground Park 150,000          150,000                 150,000          150,000            
PG Intergenerational Center 2,625,000       2,625,000              875,000          875,000          875,000          2,625,000         

Public Works
*Purchase of Commonwealth Attorney's Office Building 135,000                        135,000                 135,000          135,000            
*Construction of new Animal Shelter 35,000                          320,000          355,000                 355,000          355,000            
Convenience Center Improvements 53,000                          60,000            35,000            148,000                 148,000          148,000            
Historic Courthouse 30,000                          30,000                   30,000            30,000              
Facilities/Maintenance Vehicle Replacement 25,000                          25,000            50,000                   50,000            50,000              
Social Services Roof Replacement 90,000            90,000                   90,000            90,000              
Carysbrook Auditorium HVAC 30,000            30,000            60,000                   60,000            60,000              
MACCA Roof Replacement 50,000 50,000                   50,000            50,000              

Public Safety
E911

Radio Equip & Paging System 4,000,000                     250,000          4,250,000              4,000,000       250,000          4,250,000         
Phone Equipment Replacement 400,000          400,000                 250,000          150,000          400,000            

Fire & Rescue

*Lake Monticello FD Emergency Power Generator Replacement 45,000                          45,000                   45,000            45,000              
Apparatus - Replacement 150,000                        150,000          150,000          450,000                 450,000          450,000            
Apparatus - Rechassis 100,000          100,000          200,000                 200,000          200,000            

Sheriff

Patrol Vehicle Replacements 183,000                        185,000          190,000          166,300          201,400          925,700                 925,700          925,700            
Patrol Vehicle Equipment Replacement 68,500                          70,500            72,500            65,400            76,900            353,800                 353,800          353,800            

Care of Prisoners

*Central Virginia Regional Jail Expansion 229,550                        229,550          459,100                 459,100          459,100            

Schools
*Old H.S./Central Elementary WastewaterTreatment Plant PH I (REMOVED - $100K per 2/15/12 BOS action)
*Old H.S./Central Elementary WastewaterTreatment Plant PH II 60,000                          60,000                   60,000            60,000              
*Middle School Wasterwater Treatment Plant 250,000                        250,000                 250,000          250,000            
Middle School to Upper Elementary Renovations 685,067                        685,067                 685,067          685,067            
Bus Replacements - 4 New 300,000                        300,000          300,000          300,000          300,000          1,500,000              1,500,000       1,500,000         
Existing HS Renovations - Gym & Locker Room 1,354,486       1,354,486              1,354,486       1,354,486         
Existing HS Renovations - HVAC 2,580,174       2,580,174              2,580,174       2,580,174         
Abrams Building - Annex Gym HVAC 483,991          483,991                 483,991          483,991            
Abrams Building Renovations 2,800,000       2,800,000              2,800,000       2,800,000         

TOTAL GENERAL FUND CIP -$                         6,977,963$                   5,902,210$     4,405,491$     2,015,800$     3,603,300$     22,904,764$          4,000,000$     16,015,564$   1,245,000$     1,599,200$     -$                    45,000$          22,904,764$     

Additional General Fund Operational Costs FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2013-17 Cummulative FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2013-17
Convenience Center-utilities,contract svcs & equip 5,200                5,200                5,200                15,600                      Borrowing 0
PG Pool - seasonal staff, utilities, insurance & supplies 56,520              56,520              113,040                    Cash 6,917,963 5,642,210 4,226,291 1,375,800 1,853,300 20,015,564
PG Pool Building - personnel, utilities, insurance & contract sevcs 28,476              21,976              50,452                      Grant 15,000 210,000 179,200 320,000 875,000 1,599,200
PG Restroom  - utilitiies 13,519              7,019                7,019                7,019                34,576                      Other 50,000 320,000 875,000 1,245,000
PG Athletic Field Lighting - utilities 2,900                2,900                5,800                        Cash Proffer 45,000 45,000
PG Outdoor Amphitheater - personnel, utilities & insurance 6,219                               6,219                6,219                6,219                6,219                31,095                      
Intergenerational Center - personnel, utilities, insurance & contract svcs 80,452              80,452                      
PG Farm Museum - personnel, utilities, insurance & contract svcs 7,719                7,719                7,719                7,719                30,876                      
Crofton Trail Park Development - personnel & insurance 5,519                5,519                5,519                16,557                      
PG Multi-Purpose Structure - personnel, utilities & insurance 6,469                6,469                12,938                      
PG Playground Expansion - maintenance & insurance 1,300                1,300                1,300                1,300                5,200                        
PG Spray Ground Park - utilities & supplies 5,000                5,000                10,000                      
E911 Radio System - personnel 61,750              61,750              61,750              61,750              247,000                    
Commonwealth Attorney Office Building - repairs & maintenance 2,000                               6,000                2,000                2,000                2,000                14,000                      
New Animal Shelter - personnel, utilities, equip, contract svcs, etc 54,440              54,440              54,440              54,440              217,760                    

-                                6,977,963$     5,902,210$     4,405,491$     2,015,800$     3,603,300$     22,904,764
-                                

-                              8,219                               150,947            151,166            250,531            324,483            885,346                 

5 Year Capital Improvement Plan Project Funding Breakout

FY 2013 - 2017 Capital Improvement Plan 4-4-12 BOS Mtg CIP Dept Requests


	Agenda 4-4-12
	Appointment of County Administrator 
	Minutes 3-14-12
	Minutes 3-17-12
	Minutes 3-21-12
	Approval of Fire Engine for Fork Union
	Resolution/National Crime Victim's Week
	FY12 Budget Supplement/PREP Grant
	Authorization to Bid the Pleasant Grove House and Western Trailhead Grant
	Approve Retiree Health Care Plan
	Accounts payable
	VDOT SSYP for FY 12/13
	Public Works Update and DEQ Violation Notices
	Return on Investment/Waterline
	Proclamation/Proclaiming April 2012 Celebrating Children Month
	Resolution/Fair Housing Month April 2012
	Shortfalls in Healthcare Fund
	Appointment/Reappointment - Jefferson Area Board for Agining Advisory Council
	CIP Clarification



